WABASHA PLANNING COMMISSION

August 14, 2024 6:00 PM
MEETING AGENDA
1) Call to Order
2) Approval of Minutes- June 11, 2024
3) Changes or Additions to Agenda
4) Public Comment
5) Public Hearings
6) Old Business
7) New Business
a) Cannabis Ordinance
8) Board of Adjustment Business
9) Other Business
10) Next Regular Meeting Date - September 10, 2024

11) Adjourn



Planning Commission

Meeting Date:  08/14/2024

SUBJECT: Approval of Minutes- June 11, 2024
DEPARTMENT: Administration

2)

TITLE:
Approval of Minutes- June 11, 2024

PURPOSE:

Attachments
6-11-24 Minutes




DRAFT

WABASHA PLANNING COMMISSION

June 11, 2024 6:00 PM
MEETING MINUTES
Commission Members: Sara Carrels, Vice Chair
Tim Wallerich, Chair ~ Sharon Burke
Scott Durand Jeff Sulla
Ozzie Goodman
Richard Heffner

Present:

Absent:

Scott Durand; Chair Tim Wallerich; Sara Carrels; Jeff Sulla; Ozzie Goodman
Sharon Burke; Richard Heffner

Also Present:  Kristi Trisko, Contracted City Planner; Wendy Busch, Planning & Zoning Assistant

1)

2)

3)

Call to Order
The meeting was called to order by Chair Wallerich at 6:00 p.m.

Approval of Minutes- May 14, 2024

Motion made by Scott Durand, seconded by Jeff Sulla to approve the meeting minutes as drafted.

Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

Other: Sharon Burke (ABSENT)
Richard Heffner (ABSENT)

Changes or Additions to Agenda
There were no changes or additions to the agenda.




4)

S)

b)

Public Comment
There were no public comments.

Public Hearings

CUP - 380 Skyline Dr Accessory Garage with Water and Sewer

City Planner Trisko provided background information and reviewed the CUP application. She stated
that the property owners would like to add a detached garage, including restroom facilities, which
under the City Code requires a CUP as a guest cottage. Access to the garage was discussed. City
Planner Trisko reviewed comments from Public Works staff and discussed utility connections. She
reviewed the public hearing notification process and relayed feedback from a neighboring property
owner, who expressed no concerns.

City Planner Trisko indicated that staff recommends approval of the CUP, with two suggested
conditions:

1) If the square footage changes, the applicant would need to submit a modified CUP application.
2) The home and guest cottage (detached accessory structure) will be maintained by the same
owner.

Chair Wallerich opened the public hearing for this item at 6:05 p.m. No one spoke during the public
hearing. Chair Wallerich closed the public hearing at 6:06 p.m.

Motion made by Jeff Sulla, seconded by Ozzie Goodman to approve the CUP with the
recommended conditions of approval.

Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

Other: Sharon Burke (ABSENT)
Richard Heffner (ABSENT)

Rezone - 1600 5th Grant Blvd from R1 to Industrial

City Planner Trisko reviewed a rezoning request for property owned by Kohner Sand and Gravel.
She stated that the rezoning, if approved, would result in the zoning matching up with current land
use, as the City is applying for State grant funding toward the barge terminal project. She clarified
that a barge terminal would be a permitted use in the Industrial zone. She discussed the truck traffic
associated with the movement of sand, noting that a major traffic generator Conditional Use Permit
application will be submitted for the site relating to this operation in the future. She further
discussed the 26.75 acre site and the surrounding land uses. She reviewed limiting factors in the
Shoreland Overlay District and referenced the floodway and the flood plain. She discussed the
Environmental Impact Statement analysis for the barge terminal project. She summarized comments
from the Street Commission, Utilities Commission, emergency personnel, other City staff, and DNR
representative Lucas Youngsma. She reviewed the public hearing notification process and detailed
the next steps in the rezoning process, including a recommendation from the Planning Commission
following the public hearing. She further discussed the barge terminal project. It was clarified that
surrounding properties are zoned Industrial.

Chair Wallerich opened the public hearing for this item at 6:15 p.m.

David Wodele, 515 Lawrence Boulevard West, Wabasha, introduced himself as a member of the
Cemetery Board and the Port Authority Board. He commented that he has received no comments in
opposition to the rezoning. He did express concerns about CP Rail blocking the road for extended
periods of time, which would interfere with truck traffic.



6)

7)

8)

9)

Rob Carrels, 2150 5th Grant Boulevard, Wabasha, spoke in opposition to the dredging operation.
Chair Wallerich noted that another public hearing will be held in conjunction with the CUP
application and encouraged Mr. Carrels to talk with City Planner Trisko about his concerns.

No one else spoke during the public hearing. Chair Wallerich closed the public hearing at 6:20 p.m.

Motion made by Scott Durand, seconded by Jeff Sulla to recommend approval of the proposed
rezoning.

Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

Other: Richard Heffner (ABSENT)
Sharon Burke (ABSENT)

Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Updates

City Planner Trisko provided background information and referenced past discussion of ordinance
revisions. She summarized the proposed ordinance language revisions relating to accessory
apartments / guest cottages in the TDC zone, retail uses in Industrial zones, daycare uses, and
supervised living facilities. She reviewed the public hearing notification process.

Chair Wallerich requested clarification of residential uses in the TDC zone, and City Planner Trisko
provided information in this regard.

Chair Wallerich opened the public hearing for this item at 6:25 p.m. No one spoke during the public
hearing. Chair Wallerich closed the public hearing at 6:26 p.m.

Motion made by Sara Carrels, seconded by Scott Durand to recommend approval of the proposed
Zoning Ordinance revisions.

Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

Other: Richard Heffner (ABSENT)
Sharon Burke (ABSENT)

Old Business
There was no old business.

New Business
There was no new business.

Board of Adjustment Business
There was no Board of Adjustment business.

Other Business
There was no other business.



10) Next Regular Meeting Date - July 9, 2024
Future meeting agenda items were discussed. It was noted that this meeting may be canceled.

11) Adjourn

Motion made by Scott Durand, seconded by Sara Carrels to adjourn the meeting. The meeting
adjourned at 6:25 p.m.

Vote: 5 - 0 Adopted - Unanimously

Other: Richard Heffner (ABSENT)
Sharon Burke (ABSENT)

Respectfully submitted by:

Wendy Busch, City Clerk

Adopted Date



Planning Commission

Meeting Date:  08/14/2024
SUBJECT: Cannabis Ordinance
DEPARTMENT: Administration

7) )

TITLE:

Cannabis Ordinance

PURPOSE:

Staff Memo

Attachments




m BOLTON
& MENK

Real People. Real Solutions.

MEMORANDUM

Date: 8/7/24

To: Wabasha Planning Commission
From: Kristi Trisko

Subject: Cannabis Ordinance / Moratorium

The MN State Department of Cannabis Management and the League of Minnesota
Cities has been working to outline the issues surrounding cannabis businesses by
drafting frequently asked questions, defining key elements that should be regulated, and
the LMC has completed a draft ordinance.

In July 2023, the City adopted an ordinance establishing a moratorium on all cannabis
related businesses until January 1, 2025. While we still have five (5) months to adopt a
new ordinance, Wabasha County is moving forward with a draft ordinance that can be
extended to all cities within the County if adopted by resolution.

On Wednesday, June 26™, Michael Plante, the Wabasha County Administrator, held a
county-wide meeting to discuss this issue. Caroline Gregerson and | attended that
meeting. The County is working towards adopting an ordinance that was drafted from
the LMC’s ordinance and per MN State Statute, all cities within an adopted county
ordinance can, by resolution, allow the County to manage and regulate all cannabis
related businesses within the County.

Per State Statute, one (1) cannabis business must be allowed for every 12,500
residents. If a county has one active registration for every 12,500 residents, a city
within the county is not obligated to register a cannabis business.

Wabasha County intends to allow two (2) cannabis businesses within the County.

Other planning and zoning standards include locational criteria and setback standards
from schools, day cares, etc., and performance standards including odor and
ventilation, security, wastewater and solid waste management, energy and water usage,
temporary cannabis use standards, local and state registration standards, and annual
inspections.

If a cannabis business submits an application within the City of Wabasha'’s jurisdictional
boundaries AND the City has adopted a resolution approving the Counties ordinance,
we will be a participant in the review process, but the County will manage all hearings
and approve or deny cannabis businesses based on findings of facts and their adopted
ordinance standards.

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\Ordinances\Cannabis Ordinance\Staff Reports\Cannabis Ordinance Memo.docx

Bolton & Menk is an equal opportunity employer.



Name: Wabasha Planning Commission
Date: 5/6/24
Page: 2

Keep in mind, only two (2) businesses within the County will be allowed. Wabasha
County will provide the city with their draft ordinance for review shortly.

Ordinance Discussion Points: Let’s discuss the following key ordinance points to be
included in the Wabasha County Cannabis Code:

1. Planning process; | would recommend that we only allow these uses by a CUP/IUP
process

2. Zoning districts for the uses; We can discuss the Industrial, Highway Commercial,
Traditional Downtown Commercial, and perhaps the General Commercial zoning
districts as possibly allowing these uses. Though I’'m not sure about allowing these uses
in the GC zones as these parcels are really spread throughout the city so not necessarily
contained in a “typical” downtown or central area. I've attached a copy of our zoning
map for this discussion.

Timeline: As the moratorium for both the County and the City ends at the beginning of
2025, we need to act quickly on this matter given our monthly meeting schedules for
both the City and the County. The proposed schedule is as follows:

August P&Z Meeting/Discussion and recommendation to City Council

September City Council review and approval of a drafted resolution prepared
by Wabasha County

October/November Wabasha County Review, hearing, adoption

Commission Action: Review draft materials and forward a recommendation to City
Council requesting that they adopt or not adopt a resolution provided by Wabasha
County granting the County the authority to regulate all Cannabis businesses within the
City.

H:\WABASHA_CI_MN\T61115593\Ordinances\Cannabis Ordinance\Staff Reports\Cannabis Ordinance Memo.docx

Bolton & Menk is an equal opportunity employer.



S Ty i Lo T 11 L

Official Zoning Map

City of Wabasha

Fl|

Legend

Zoning

- GC - General Commercial

B - Higeay Commersal

] - i

[ ] #1- Low Dansity Resicansa
E R-2 - Medium Density Residenlizl
- RL: - Residaniial Corsarvancy

- RALA - RuralResidentishL imitadigricufturs

- TS - Traditicnal Downdown Commercial

Parcals

o ) iy Limies

a 2,000
| Fest

Sowrce: Cily of Wabashs




MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

e T
SRS A LR TAY Dk

A Guide for Local Governments

on Adult-Use Cannabis

Version 1.3
Updated July 11, 2024

‘\

Table of Contents

INtrodUCtion ......cccceseesseoseessnsssesasossssssosasssssssssssosassasses 3
About OCM .......uuoueeueeeereereereerensucesceseeseoseessosacsassacsss 4
Cannabis License Types .......ccoueeeusereususeessnsesensssesenens 3
Adult-Use Cannabis Law ........cccceerueecssscssceseoseoseoses 7
Cannabis Licensing Process........coeeucueseseseesnsususnsasaes 8
General Authorities ..........ceceecereeseeeeeeeseeseeseeseesassanes 10
Zoning and Land Use.............ucueueuerueucnervsuenccsvenesnanes 12
Local Approval Process .........cceueerereueueusurecacusususnsne 13
Inspections and Compliance Checks ........................ 18
Municipal Cannabis Stores ..........coeeereururereusueeennees 19
Creating Your Local Ordinance ..........cceeesvsurueueueaeee 20

Additional ReSOUrces ........ueeeeeeessvveeesessseosesssssssssssssns 21



Introduction

This guide serves as a general overview of Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law, and
how local governments can expect to be involved. The guide also provides important
information about Minnesota’s new Office of Cannabis Management (OCM), and the
office’s structure, roles, and responsibilities. While medical cannabis continues to play an
important role in the state’s cannabis environment, this guide is primarily focused on the

adult-use cannabis law and marketplace.

The following pages outline the variety of cannabis business licenses that will be issued,
provide a broad summary of important aspects of the adult-use cannabis law, and cover a
wide range of expectations and authorities that relate to local governments. This guide also
provides best practices and important requirements for developing a local cannabis

ordinance.

Chapter 342 of Minnesota law

was established by the State

Legislature in 2023 and was

updated in 2024. Mentions of T e

“adult-use cannabis law” or “the

law” throughout this guide refer

to Chapter 342 and the changes ]

made to it.

As of this guide’s date of

publication, state regulations

governing the adult-use -

cannabis market have not yet
been published —this document
will be updated when such

regulations become effective. ' I | |

This guide is not a substitute for legal advice, nor does it seek to provide legal advice. Local governments and

municipal officials seeking legal advice should consult an attorney.

MY miNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

About OCM

Minnesota’s Office of Cannabis Management is the state regulatory office created to
oversee the implementation and regulation of the adult-use cannabis market, the medical
cannabis market, and the consumer hemp industry. Housed within OCM are the Division
of Medical Cannabis (effective July 1, 2024), which operates the medical cannabis
program, and the Division of Social Equity, which promotes development, stability, and
safety in communities that have experienced a disproportionate, negative impact from

cannabis prohibition and usage.

MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

OCM, through Chapter 342, is tasked with establishing rules and policy and exercising its
regulatory authority over the Minnesota cannabis industry. In its duties, OCM is mandated

to:

* Promote public health and welfare.

e Protect public safety.

e Climinate the illicit market for cannabis flower and cannabis products.
* Meet the market demand for cannabis flower and cannabis products.
* Promote a craft industry for cannabis flower and cannabis products.

e Prioritize growth and recovery in communities that have experienced a

disproportionate, negative impact from cannabis prohibition.

OCM governs the application and licensing process for cannabis and hemp businesses,
specific requirements for each type of license and their respective business activities, and
conducts enforcement and inspection activities across the Minnesota cannabis and hemp

industries.

MY miNNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




License Types

Minnesota law allows for 13 different types of business licenses, each fulfilling a unique role
in the cannabis and hemp supply chain. In addition to license types below, OCM will also
issue endorsements to license holders to engage in specific activities, including producing,

manufacturing, and sale of medical cannabis for patients.

Microbusiness

Microbusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis products and hemp
products, and package such products for sale to customers or another licensed cannabis

business. Microbusiness may also operate a single retail location.

Mezzobusiness
Mezzobusinesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture cannabis products and hemp
products, and package such products for sale to customers or another licensed cannabis

business. Mezzobusiness may also operate up to three retail locations.

Cultivator

Cultivators may cultivate cannabis and package such cannabis for sale to another licensed

cannabis business.

Manufacturer

Manufacturers may manufacture cannabis products and hemp products, and package such

products for sale to a licensed cannabis retailer.

Retailer
Retailers may sell immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis, cannabis products,

hemp products, and other products authorized by law to customers and patients.

Wholesaler

Wholesalers may purchase and/or sell immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis,
cannabis products, and hemp products from another licensed cannabis business.

Wholesalers may also import herp-derived consumer products and lower-potency hemp

edibles.

MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

License Types (continued)

Transporter
Transporters may transport immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis, cannabis

products, and hemp products to licensed cannabis businesses.

Testing Facility
Testing facilities may obtain and test immature cannabis plants and seedlings, cannabis,

cannabis products, and hemp products from licensed cannabis businesses.

Event Organizer

Event organizers may organize a temporary cannabis event lasting no more than four days.

Delivery Service
Delivery services may purchase cannabis, cannabis products, and hemp products from
retailers or cannabis business with retail endorsements for transport and delivery to

customers.

Medical Cannabis Combination Business

Medical cannabis combination businesses may cultivate cannabis and manufacture
cannabis and hemp products, and package such products for sale to customers, patients,
or another licensed cannabis business. Medical cannabis combination businesses may

operate up to one retail location in each congressional district.

Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Manufacturer
Lower-potency hemp edible manufacturers may manufacture and package lower-potency
hemp edibles for consumer sale, and sell hemp concentrate and lower-potency hemp

edibles to other cannabis and hemp businesses.

Lower-Potency Hemp Edible Retailer

Lower-potency hemp edible retailers may sell lower-potency hemp edibles to customers.

Each license is subject to further restrictions on allowable activities. Maximum cultivation
area and manufacturing allowances vary by license type. Allowable product purchase,

transfer, and sale between licensees are subject to restrictions in the law.

MY MINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




The Adult-Use Cannabis Law

Minnesota’s new adult-use cannabis law permits the personal use, possession, and

transportation of cannabis by those 21 years of age and older, and allows licensed

businesses to conduct cultivation, manufacturing, transport, delivery, and sale of cannabis

and cannabis products.

For Individuals

Possession limits:

o Flower - 2 oz. in public, 2 Ibs. in private residence II

Consumption only allowed on private property or at licensed businesses with on-site

o Concentrate - 8 g
o Edibles (including lower-potency hemp) - 800 mg THC

consumption endorsements. Consumption not allowed in public.

Gifting cannabis to another individual over 21 years old is allowed, subject to
possession limits.

Home cultivation is limited to four mature and four immature plants (eight total) in a
single residence. Plants must be in an enclosed and locked space.

Home extraction using volatile substances (e.g., butane, ethanol) is not allowed.

Unlicensed sales are not allowed.

For Businesses

Advertising:
© May not include or appeal to those under 21 years old.

o

Must include proper warning statements.
© May not include misleading claims or false statements.
o Billboards are not allowed.
The flow of all products through the supply chain must be
tracked by the state-authorized tracking system.
All products sold to consumers and patients must be

tested for contaminants.

Home delivery is allowed by licensed businesses.

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

The Cannabis Licensing Process

An applicant will take the following steps to proceed from application to active licensure.
As described, processes vary depending on social equity status and/or whether the type of

license being sought is capped or uncapped in the general licensing process.

License Preapproval: Early Mover Process for Social
Equity Applicants

The license preapproval process is a one-time application process available for verified social
equity applicants. State law requires OCM to open the application window on July 24,
2024, and close the window on August 12, 2024. The preapproval process is available for

the following license types, and all are capped in this process: microbusiness, mezzobusiness,

cultivator, retailer, wholesaler, transporter, testing facility, and delivery service.
Preapproval steps:

1. Applicant’s social equity applicant (SEA) status verified.

2. Complete application and submit application fees.

3. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.

4. Application (if qualified) entered into lottery drawing.

5. If selected in lottery, OCM completes background check of selected applicant and
issues license preapproval.

6. Applicant with license preapproval® submits business location and amends application
accordingly.

7. OCM forwards completed application to local government.

8. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.

9. OCM conducts site inspection.

10. When regulations are adopted, license becomes active, operations may commence.

*For social equity applicants with license preapproval for microbusiness, mezzobusiness, or
a cultivator license, they may begin growing cannabis plants prior to the adoption of rules if
OCM receives approval from local governments in a form and manner determined by the
office. This is only applicable to cultivation and does not authorize retail sales or other

endorsed activities of the licenses prior to the adoption of rules.

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




The Cannabis Licensing Process (cont.)

The general licensing process will align with the adoption of rules and OCM will share more
information about the timing of general licensing process. The general licensing process

includes social equity applicants and non-social equity applicants.

General Licensing: Cultivator, Manufacturer, Retailer, Mezzobusiness

1. Complete application and submit application fees.

2. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.

3. Application (if qualified) entered into lottery drawing.

4. If selected in lottery, OCM completes background check of selected applicant and
issues preliminary approval.

5. Applicant with preliminary approval submits business location and amends application
accordingly.

6. OCM forwards completed application to local government.

7. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.

8. OCM conducts site inspection.

9. License becomes active, operations may commence.”

General Licensing: Microbusiness, Wholesaler, Transporter, Testing

Facility, Event Organizer
1. Complete application and submit application fees.
2. Application vetted for minimum requirements by OCM.
3. For qualified applicants, OCM completes background check of vetted applicant and
issues preliminary approval.
4. Selected applicant submits business location and amends application accordingly.
5. OCM forwards completed application to local government.
6. Local government completes certification of zoning compliance.
7. OCM conducts site inspection.

8. License becomes active, operations may commence.”

*For businesses seeking a retail endorsement (microbusiness, mezzobusiness, and retailer),
a valid local retail registration is required prior to the business commencing any retail sales.

See Page 16 for information on the local retail registration process.

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

General Authorities

Local governments in Minnesota have various means of oversight over the cannabis market,
as provided by the adult-use cannabis law. Local governments may not issue outright bans on

cannabis business, or limit operations in a manner beyond what is provided by state law.

Cannabis Retail Restrictions (342.13)

Local governments may limit the number of retailers and microbusiness/mezzobusinesses
with retail endorsements allowed within their locality, as long as there is at least one retail
location per 12,500 residents. Local units of government are not obligated to seek out a
business to register as cannabis business if they have not been approached by any potential
applicants, but cannot prohibit the establishment of a business if this population
requirement is not met. Local units of government may also issue more than the minimum
number of registrations. Per statutory direction, a municipal cannabis store (Page 19)
cannot be included in the minimum number of registrations required. For population

counts, the state demographer estimates will likely be utilized.

Tribal Governments (342.13)

OCM: is prohibited from and will not issue state licenses to businesses in Indian Country
without consent from a tribal nation. Tribal nations hold the authority to license tribal
cannabis businesses on tribal lands — this process is separate than OCM'’s licensing
process and authority. Subject to compacting, Tribal nations may operate cannabis
businesses off tribal lands. There will be more information available once the compacting

processes are complete

Taxes (295.81; 295.82)

Retail sales of taxable cannabis products are subject to the state and local sales and use tax
and a 10% gross receipts tax. Cannabis gross receipts tax proceeds are allocated as follows:
20% to the local government cannabis aid account and 80% to the state general fund.
Local taxes imposed solely on sale of cannabis products are prohibited.

Cannabis retailers will be subject to the same real property tax classification as all other
retail businesses. Real property used for raising, cultivating, processing, or storing cannabis
plants, cannabis flower, or cannabis products for sale will be classified as commercial and

industrial property.

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




General Authorities (cont.)
Retail Timing Restrictions (342.13)

Local governments may prohibit retail sales of cannabis between the hours of 8 a.m. and
10 a.m. Monday-Saturday, and 9 p.m. and 2 a.m. the following day.

Operating Multiple Locations with One License
Certain cannabis licenses allow for multiple retail locations to be operated under a single

license, with the following limitations:

* Retailers: up to five retail locations.

® Mezzobusinesses: up to three retail locations.

* Microbusinesses: up to one retail location.

* Medical cannabis combination businesses: one retail location per congressional
district. Additionally, medical cannabis combination businesses may cultivate at more

than one location within other limitations on cultivation.

Forall other license types, one license permits the operation of one location. Each retail

location requires local certification and/or registration.

AAAN

ARLN ﬁE
I" ] lll\
—Ga

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

Zoning and Land Use

Buffer Guidelines (342.13)

State law does not restrict how a local government conducts its zoning designations for
cannabis businesses, except that they may prohibit the operation of a cannabis business
within 1,000 feet of a school, or 500 feet of a day care, residential treatment facility, or
an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including playgrounds
and athletic fields.

Zoning Guidelines

While each locality conducts its zoning differently, a few themes have emerged across the
country. For example, cannabis manufacturing facilities are often placed in industrial
zones, while cannabis retailers are typically found in commercial/retail zones. Cannabis
retail facilities align with general retail establishments and are prohibited from allowing
consumption or use onsite, and are also required to have plans to prevent the visibility of
cannabis and hemp-derived products to individuals outside the retail location. Industrial

hemp is an agricultural product, and should be zoned as such.

Cannabis businesses should be zoned under existing zoning ordinances in accordance with
the license type or endorsed activities held by the cannabis business. Note that certain
types of licenses may be able to perform multiple activities which may have different
zoning analogues. In the same way municipalities may zone a microbrewery that
predominately sells directly to onsite consumers differently than a microbrewery that sells
packaged beer to retailers and restaurants, so too might a municipality wish to zone two
microbusinesses based on the actual activities that each business is undertaking. Table 1,
included on Pages 13 and 14, explains the types of activities that cannabis businesses might

undertake, as well as, some recommended existing zoning categories.

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Zoning and Land Use (cont.)

Table 1: Cannabis and Hemp Business Activities

License Type

Zoning and Land Use (cont.)

Table 1: Cannabis and Hemp Business Activities (continued)

= . L. . Comparable Municipal License Type
Endorsed Activity | Eligible to Do Description of Activity ,P . X P K . .. 7P Description of Comparable Municipal
L. Districts Considerations Endorsed Activity Eligible to Do .. . . .
Endorsed Activity Endorsed Activit Activity Districts Considerations
ndorsed Activity
Odor
o ., Micros may offer
"Cultivation” means any Indoor: . Retalil, )
) o . Potential need for This endorsed N onsite consumption,
Cultivator activity involving the planting, |Industrial, . . . . elghborhood .
_ ! . ) ) transportation from Retailer activity and license o similar to breweries.
Mezzobusiness growing, harvesting, drying, | Commercial, . . Shopping Districts,
o ; ) ) facility Mezzobusiness types allow a business | " )
Cultivation Microbusiness curing, grading, or trimming | Production Cannabis Retail Microbusiness to sell cannabis and Light Industria, Micros and Mezzos
Medical Cannabis | of cannabis plants, cannabis . . Existing districts ) )
o Waste, water, and Medical Cannabis cannabis products . may include multiple
Combination flower, hemp plants, or hemp | Outdoor: c . where off-sale liquor - .
; energy usage ombination directly to activities: cultivation,
plant parts. Agricultural or tobacco sales are
consumers. lowed manufacture, and/or
allowed. )
Security retail.
Odor Fleet based business
This license type that will own multiple
This group of endorsed Potential need for \

) Manufacturer group Cannabic allows a company to vehicles, but not
Cannabis activities turn raw, dried transportation from Transportation transport products necessarily hold a
Manufact Mezzobusiness bis and bi . Industrial, Facilic P Transporter portp U

anufacturing, ) ) cannabis and cannabis parts . acili
o ‘ 8 Microbusiness o : p . Commercial, Y from one license substantial amount
rocessing, ) ) into other types of cannabis ) i
8 Medical Cannabis YP Production type to another. ofcarm»abls or
Extraction o products, e.g. edibles or Waste, water, and cannabis products.
Combination )
topicals. energy usage
Fleet based business
Security Thisli that will own multiple
1s license type hicles. but not
vehicles, but no
Lower-Potency . ) allows for gy
. Industrial, Odor Delivery Cannabis Delivery X necessarily hold a
Hemp Hemp Edible These business convert hemp transportation to the .
Commercial, |Waste, water, and substantial amount
Manufacturing (LPHE) into LPHE edible prodcuts. . end consumer.
Production energy of cannabis or
Manufacturing b 4
cannabis products.
Wholesale This activity and license type On site
Cultivator allows a business to purchase Need for This license entitles | Anywhere that the consumption
Manufacturer from a business growing or Industrial, transportation from license holder to city permits events
Wholesale Mezzobusiness manufactur\ng cannabis or Commercial, |facility Events Event Organizer organizer a to occur, subject to Retail sales by a
Microbusiness cannabis products and sell to | Production temporary event other restrictions licensed or endorsed
Medical Cannabis | a cannabis business engaged Security lasting no more than | related to cannabis . .
retail business
Combination in retail. four days. use.
possible.

MY miINNesOTA

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Local Approval Process

Local governments play a critical role in the licensing
process, serving as a near-final approval check on
cannabis businesses nearing the awarding of a state
license for operations. Once an applicant has been
vetted by OCM and is selected for proceeding in the
verification process, they are then required to receive
the local government’s certification of zoning
compliance and/or local retail registration before

operations may commence.

Local Certification of Zoning Compliance (342.13;
342.14)

Following OCM'’s vetting process, local governments must certify that the applicant with
preliminary approval has achieved compliance with local zoning ordinances prior to the

licensee receiving final approval from OCM to commence operations.

During the application and licensing process for cannabis businesses, OCM will notify a
local government when an applicant intends to operate within their jurisdiction and request
a certification as to whether a proposed cannabis business complies with local zoning
ordinances, and if applicable, whether the proposed business complies with state fire code

and building code.

According to Minnesota’s cannabis law, a local unit of government has 30 days to respond
to this request for certification of compliance. If a local government does not respond to
OCM'’s request for certification of compliance within the 30 days, the cannabis law allows
OCM to issue alicense. OCM may not issue the final approval for a license if the local

government has indicated they are not in compliance.

OCM will work with local governments to access the licensing software system to

complete this zoning certification process.

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

Local Approval Process (cont.)
Local Retail Registration Process (342.22)

Once the licensing process begins, local government registration applies to cannabis
retailers or other cannabis/hemp businesses seeking a retail endorsement. Local

governments must issue a retail registration after verifying that:

* The business has a valid license or license preapproval issued by OCM.
* The business has paid a registration fee or renewal fee to the local government;

o Initial registration fees collected by a local government may be $500 or half the
amount of the applicable initial license fee, whichever is less, and renewal
registration fees may be $1,000 or half the amount of the applicable renewal
license fee, whichever is less.

* The business is found to be in compliance with Chapter 342 and local ordinances.
* If applicable, the business is current on all property taxes and assessments for the

proposed retail location.

Local registrations may also be issued by counties if the respective local government

transfers such authorities to the county.

Determining a Process for Limiting Retail Registrations

If alocal government wishes to place a limitation on the number of retailers and
microbusiness/mezzobusinesses with retail endorsements allowed within their locality (as
long as there is at least one retail location per 12,500 residents, see Page 10), state law
does not define the process for a local government’s selection if there are more applicants
than registrations available. A few options for this process include the use of a lottery, a
first-come/first-serve model, a rolling basis, and others. Local governments should work
with an attorney to determine their specific process for selection if they wish to limit the
number of licensed cannabis retailers per 342.13. Local governments are not required to

limit the number of licensed cannabis retailers.

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Local Approval Process (cont.)

Local governments are permitted specific authorities for registration refusal and

registration suspension, in addition to—and not in conflict with—OCM authorities.

Registration and Renewal Refusals
Local governments may refuse the registration A

and/or certification of a license renewal if the

license is associated with an individual or business
who no longer holds a valid license, has failed to pay
the local registration or renewal fee, or has been
found in noncompliance in connection with a

preliminary or renewal compliance check.

Local Registration Suspension (342.22)

Local governments may suspend the local retail registration of a cannabis business or
hemp business if the business is determined to not be operating in compliance with a
local ordinance authorized by 342.13 or if the operation of the business poses an
immediate threat to the health and safety of the public. The local government must
immediately notify OCM of the suspension if it occurs. OCM will review the

suspension and may reinstate the registration or take enforcement action.

Expedited Complaint Process (342.13)

Per state law, OCM will establish an expedited complaint process during the rulemaking

process to receive, review, read, and respond to complaints made by a local unit of
government about a cannabis business. Upon promulgation of rules, OCM will publish

the complaint process.

At a minimum, the expedited complaint process shall require the office to provide an
initial response to the complaint within seven days and perform any necessary

inspections within 30 days. Within this process, if a local government notifies OCM

that a cannabis business poses an immediate threat to the health or safety of the public,

the office must respond within one business day.

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

Inspections & Compliance Checks

Local governments are permitted specific business inspection and compliance check
authorities, in addition to—and not in conflict with—OCM authorities.

Inspections and Compliance Checks (342.22)

Local governments must conduct compliance

checks for cannabis and hemp businesses
holding retail registration at least once per
calendar year. These compliance checks must

verify compliance with age verification

procedures and compliance with any applicable
local ordinance established pursuant to 342.13.
OCM maintains inspection authorities for all
cannabis licenses to verify compliance with

operation requirements, product limits, and

other applicable requirements of Chapter 342.

'///l 'f\\

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Municipal Cannabis Stores

diiiimy
0 0

city or county seeking to operate a single pr— —

As authorized in Chapter 342.32, local
governments are permitted to apply for

a cannabis retail license to establish and

operate a municipal cannabis store.

State law requires OCM issue a license to a

municipal cannabis store if the city or

County:

* Submits required application information to OCM,
® Meets minimum requirements for licensure, and

* Pays applicable application and license fee.

A municipal cannabis store will not be included in the total count of retail licenses issued by

the state under Chapter 342.

A municipal cannabis store cannot be counted as retail registration for purposes of

determining whether a municipality’s cap on retail registrations imposed by ordinance.

MY miINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT

Creating Your Local Ordinance

As authorized in 34213, a local government may adopt a local ordinance regarding

cannabis businesses. Establishing local governments’ ordinances on cannabis businesses in

a timely manner is critical for the ability for local cities or towns to establish local control as

described in the law, and is necessary for the success of the statewide industry and the

ability of local governments to protect public health and safety. The cannabis market’s

potential to create jobs, generate revenue, and contribute to economic development at

the local and state level is supported through local ordinance work. The issuance of local

certifications and registrations to prospective cannabis businesses is also dependent on

local ordinances.

® Local governments may not prohibit the possession,
transportation, or use of cannabis, or the establishment
or operation of a cannabis business licensed under state

law.

® Local governments may adopt reasonable restrictions on
the time, place, and manner of cannabis business

operations (see Page 11).

® Local governments may adopt interim ordinances to
protect public safety and welfare, as any studies and/or
further considerations on local cannabis activities are
being conducted, until January 1, 2025. A public hearing

must be held prior to adoption of an interim ordinance.

e If your local government wishes to operate a municipal
cannabis store, the establishment and operation of such

a facility must be considered in a local ordinance.

Model Ordinance

R

For additional guidance regarding the creation of a cannabis related ordinance, please

reference the addendum in this packet.

MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT



Additional Resources Appendix A: Model Ordinance

OCM Toolkit for Local Partners

Please visit OCM webpage (mn.gov/ocm/local-governments/) for additional information,
including a toolkit of resources developed specifically for local government partners. The
webpage will be updated as additional information becomes available and as state

regulations are adopted.
These resources are also included in the addendum of this packet.

Toolkit resources include:
e Appendix A: Model Ordinance
e Appendix B: Hemp Flower and Hemp-Derived Cannabinoid Product Checklist
e Appendix C: Enforcement Notice from the Office of Cannabis Management
e Appendix D: Notice to Unlawful Cannabis Sellers

Local Organizations
There are several organizations who also have developed resources to support local
governments regarding the cannabis industry. Please feel free to contact the
following for additional resources:

* League of Minnesota Cities

¢ Association of Minnesota Counties

* Minnesota Public Health Law Center

MY miINNesOTA MY MmiINNesOTA

OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT OFFICE OF CANNABIS MANAGEMENT




Cannabis Model Ordinance

The following model ordinance is meant to be used as a resource for cities, counties, and townships within

Minnesota. The italicized text in red is meant to provide commentary and notes to jurisdictions considering

using this ordinance and should be removed from any ordinance formally adopted by said jurisdiction.

Certain items are not required to be included in the adopted ordinance: ‘OR’ and (optional) are placed

throughout for areas where a jurisdiction may want to consider one or more choices on language.

Section 1
Section 2
Section 3
Section 4
Section 5
Section 6
Section 7

Administration

Registration of Cannabis Business

Requirements for a Cannabis Business (Time, Place, Manner)
Temporary Cannabis Events

Lower Potency Hemp Edibles

Local Government as a Retailer

Use of Cannabis in Public

AN ORDINANCE OF THE (CITY/COUNTY OF ) TO REGULATE CANNABIS

BUSINESSES

The (city council/town board/county board) of (city/town/county) hereby ordains:

Section 1.
1.1

1.2

Administration

Findings and Purpose
(insert local authority) makes the following legislative findings:

The purpose of this ordinance is to implement the provisions of Minnesota Statutes,
chapter 342, which authorizes (insert local authority) to protect the public health, safety,
welfare of (insert local here) residents by regulating cannabis businesses within the legal
boundaries of (insert local here).

(insert local authority) finds and concludes that the proposed provisions are appropriate
and lawful land use regulations for (insert local here), that the proposed amendments will
promote the community's interest in reasonable stability in zoning for now and in the
future, and that the proposed provisions are in the public interest and for the public good.

Authority & Jurisdiction
A county can adopt an ordinance that applies to unincorporated areas and cities that have
delegated authority to impose local zoning controls.

(insert local authority) has the authority to adopt this ordinance pursuant to:

a) Minn. Stat. 342.13(c), regarding the authority of a local unit of government to
adopt reasonable restrictions of the time, place, and manner of the operation of

a cannabis business provided that such restrictions do not prohibit the
establishment or operation of cannabis businesses.

b) Minn. Stat. 342.22, regarding the local registration and enforcement
requirements of state-licensed cannabis retail businesses and lower-potency
hemp edible retail businesses.

c) Minn. Stat. 152.0263, Subd. 5, regarding the use of cannabis in public places.

d) Minn. Stat. 462.357, regarding the authority of a local authority to adopt zoning
ordinances.

Ordinance shall be applicable to the legal boundaries of (insert local here).

(Optional) (insert city here) has delegated cannabis retail registration authority to (insert county here).
However, (insert city here) may adopt ordinances under Sections (2.6, 3 and 4) if (insert county here) has
not adopted conflicting provisions.

1.3

1.4

1.5

Severability

If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional
or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this ordinance shall not
be affected thereby.

Enforcement
The elected body of a jurisdiction can choose to designate an official to administer and
enforce this ordinance.

The (insert name of local government or designated official) is responsible for the
administration and enforcement of this ordinance. Any violation of the provisions of this
ordinance or failure to comply with any of its requirements constitutes a misdemeanor
and is punishable as defined by law. Violations of this ordinance can occur regardless of
whether or not a permit is required for a regulated activity listed in this ordinance.
Definitions

Unless otherwise noted in this section, words and phrases contained in Minn. Stat. 342.01
and the rules promulgated pursuant to any of these acts, shall have the same meanings in
this ordinance.

Cannabis Cultivation: A cannabis business licensed to grow cannabis plants within the
approved amount of space from seed or immature plant to mature plant. harvest
cannabis flower from mature plant, package and label immature plants and seedlings
and cannabis flower for sale to other cannabis businesses, transport cannabis flower to a
cannabis manufacturer located on the same premises, and perform other actions
approved by the office.

Cannabis Retail Businesses: A retail location and the retail location(s) of a
mezzobusinesses with a retail operations endorsement, microbusinesses with a retail
operations endorsement, medical combination businesses operating a retail location,
(and/excluding) lower-potency hemp edible retailers.



4. Cannabis Retailer: Any person, partnership, firm, corporation, or association, foreign or
domestic, selling cannabis product to a consumer and not for the purpose of resale in any
form.

5. Daycare: A location licensed with the Minnesota Department of Human Services to
provide the care of a child in a residence outside the child's own home for gain or
otherwise, on a regular basis, for any part of a 24-hour day.

6. Lower-potency Hemp Edible: As defined under Minn. Stat. 342.01 subd. 50.

7. Office of Cannabis Management: Minnesota Office of Cannabis Management, referred to
as “OCM” in this ordinance.

8. Place of Public Accommodation: A business, accommodation, refreshment,
entertainment, recreation, or transportation facility of any kind, whether licensed or not,
whose goods, services, facilities, privileges, advantages or accommodations are extended,
offered, sold, or otherwise made available to the public.

9. Preliminary License Approval: OCM pre-approval for a cannabis business license for
applicants who qualify under Minn. Stat. 342.17.

10. Public Place: A public park or trail, public street or sidewalk; any enclosed, indoor area
used by the general public, including, but not limited to, restaurants; bars; any other food
or liquor establishment; hospitals; nursing homes; auditoriums; arenas; gyms; meeting
rooms; common areas of rental apartment buildings, and other places of public
accommodation.

11. Residential Treatment Facility: As defined under Minn. Stat. 245.462 subd. 23.

12. Retail Registration: An approved registration issued by the (insert local here) to a state-
licensed cannabis retail business.

13. School: A public school as defined under Minn. Stat. 120A.05 or a nonpublic school that
must meet the reporting requirements under Minn. Stat. 120A.24.

14. State License: An approved license issued by the State of Minnesota’s Office of Cannabis
Management to a cannabis retail business.

Section 2. Registration of Cannabis Businesses

A city or town can delegate authority for registration to the County. A city or town can still adopt specific
requirement regarding zoning, buffers, and use in public places, provided said requirements are not in
conflict with an ordinance adopted under the delegated authority granted to the County.

2.1 Consent to registering of Cannabis Businesses
No individual or entity may operate a state-licensed cannabis retail business within (insert
local here) without first registering with (insert local here).

Any state-licensed cannabis retail business that sells to a customer or patient without valid
retail registration shall incur a civil penalty of (up to $2,000) for each violation.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, the state shall not issue a license to any
cannabis business to operate in Indian country, as defined in United States Code, title 18,
section 1151, of a Minnesota Tribal government without the consent of the Tribal
government.

2.2

2.3

Compliance Checks Prior to Retail Registration
A jurisdiction can choose to conduct a preliminary compliance check prior to issuance of
retail registration.

Prior to issuance of a cannabis retail business registration, (insert local here) (shall/shall
not) conduct a preliminary compliance check to ensure compliance with local ordinances.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 342, within 30 days of receiving a copy of a state license
application from OCM, (insert local here) shall certify on a form provided by OCM whether
a proposed cannabis retail business complies with local zoning ordinances and, if
applicable, whether the proposed business complies with the state fire code and building
code.

Registration & Application Procedure
2.3.1 Fees.

(insert local here) shall not charge an application fee.

A registration fee, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule, shall be charged to
applicants depending on the type of retail business license applied for.

An initial retail registration fee shall not exceed $500 or half the amount of an initial state
license fee under Minn. Stat. 342.11, whichever is less. The initial registration fee shall
include the initial retail registration fee and the first annual renewal fee.

Any renewal retail registration fee imposed by (insert local here) shall be charged at the
time of the second renewal and each subsequent renewal thereafter.

A renewal retail registration fee shall not exceed $1,000 or half the amount of a renewal
state license fee under Minn. Stat. 342.11, whichever is less.

A medical combination business operating an adult-use retail location may only be
charged a single registration fee, not to exceed the lesser of a single retail registration fee,
defined under this section, of the adult-use retail business.

2.3.2 Application Submittal.
The (insert local here) shall issue a retail registration to a state-licensed cannabis retail
business that adheres to the requirements of Minn. Stat. 342.22.
(A) An applicant for a retail registration shall fill out an application form, as provided
by the (insert local here). Said form shall include, but is not limited to:
i Full name of the property owner and applicant;
ii.  Address, email address, and telephone number of the applicant;
iii.  The address and parcel ID for the property which the retail registration is
sought;
iv. Certification that the applicant complies with the requirements of local
ordinances established pursuant to Minn. Stat. 342.13.
v.  (Insert additional standards here)
(B) The applicant shall include with the form:



i. the application fee as required in [Section 2.3.1];
ii. a copy of a valid state license or written notice of OCM license
preapproval;
iii.  (Insert additional standards here)

(C) Once an application is considered complete, the (insert local government
designee) shall inform the applicant as such, process the application fees, and
forward the application to the (insert staff/department, or elected body that will
approve or deny the request) for approval or denial.

(D) The application fee shall be non-refundable once processed.

2.3.3 Application Approval

(A) (Optional) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application shall not be
approved if the cannabis retail business would exceed the maximum number of
registered cannabis retail businesses permitted under Section 2.6.

(B) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application shall not be approved or
renewed if the applicant is unable to meet the requirements of this ordinance.

(C) A state-licensed cannabis retail business application that meets the requirements
of this ordinance shall be approved.

2.3.4 Annual Compliance Checks.

The (insert local here) shall complete at minimum one compliance check per calendar
year of every cannabis business to assess if the business meets age verification
requirements, as required under [Minn. Stat. 342.22 Subd. 4(b) and Minn. Stat. 342.24]
and this/these [chapter/section/ordinances].

The (insert local here) shall conduct at minimum one unannounced age verification
compliance check at least once per calendar year.

Age verification compliance checks shall involve persons at least 17 years of age but under
the age of 21 who, with the prior written consent of a parent or guardian if the person is
under the age of 18, attempt to purchase adult-use cannabis flower, adult-use cannabis
products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products under the
direct supervision of a law enforcement officer or an employee of the local unit of
government.

Any failures under this section must be reported to the Office of Cannabis Management.

2.3.5 Location Change

A jurisdiction may decide to treat location changes as a new registration, or alternatively
treat a location change as allowable subject to compliance with the rest of the registration
process.

A state-licensed cannabis retail business shall be required to submit a new application for
registration under Section 2.3.2 if it seeks to move to a new location still within the legal
boundaries of (insert local here).

2.4

25

or

If a state-licensed cannabis retail business seeks to move to a new location still within the
legal boundaries of (insert local here), it shall notify (insert local here) of the proposed
location change, and submit necessary information to meet all the criteria in this
paragraph.

Renewal of Registration
The (insert local here) shall renew an annual registration of a state-licensed cannabis retail
business at the same time OCM renews the cannabis retail business’ license.

A state-licensed cannabis retail business shall apply to renew registration on a form
established by (insert local here).

A cannabis retail registration issued under this ordinance shall not be transferred.
2.4.1 Renewal Fees.

The (insert local here) may charge a renewal fee for the registration starting at the second
renewal, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule.

2.4.2 Renewal Application.
The application for renewal of a retail registration shall include, but is not limited to:

e [tems required under Section 2.3.2 of this Ordinance.
e Insert additional items here

Suspension of Registration
2.5.1 When Suspension is Warranted.

The (insert local here) may suspend a cannabis retail business’s registration if it violates
the ordinance of (insert local here) or poses an immediate threat to the health or safety
of the public. The (insert local here) shall immediately notify the cannabis retail business
in writing the grounds for the suspension.

2.5.2 Notification to OCM.

The (insert local here) shall immediately notify the OCM in writing the grounds for the
suspension. OCM will provide (insert local here) and cannabis business retailer a response
to the complaint within seven calendar days and perform any necessary inspections within
30 calendar days.

2.5.3 Length of Suspension.
A jurisdiction can wait for a determination from the OCM before reinstating a registration.

The suspension of a cannabis retail business registration may be for up to 30 calendar
days, unless OCM suspends the license for a longer period. The business may not make
sales to customers if their registration is suspended.



2.6

Section 3.

The (insert local here) may reinstate a registration if it determines that the violations have
been resolved.

The (insert local here) shall reinstate a registration if OCM determines that the violation(s)
have been resolved.

2.5.4 Civil Penalties.

Subject to Minn. Stat. 342.22, subd. 5(e) the (insert local here) may impose a civil penalty,
as specified in the (insert local here)’s Fee Schedule, for registration violations, not to
exceed $2,000.

Limiting of Registrations

A jurisdiction may choose to set a limit on the number of retail registrations within its
boundaries. The jurisdiction may not however, limit the number of registrations to fewer
than one per 12,500 residents.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall limit the number of cannabis retail businesses to
no fewer than one registration for every 12,500 residents within (insert local legal
boundaries here).

(Optional) If (insert county here) has one active cannabis retail businesses registration for
every 12,500 residents, the (insert local here) shall not be required to register additional
state-licensed cannabis retail businesses.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall limit the number of cannabis retail businesses to
(insert number <= minimum required).

Requirements for Cannabis Businesses

State Statutes note that jurisdictions may “adopt reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner
of the operation of a cannabis business.” A jurisdiction considering other siting requirements (such as a
buffer between cannabis businesses, or a buffer from churches) should consider whether there is a basis
to adopt such restrictions.

3.1

Minimum Buffer Requirements

A jurisdiction can adopt buffer requirements that prohibit the operation of a cannabis
business within a certain distance of schools, daycares, residential treatment facilities, or
from an attraction within a public park that is reqularly used by minors, including a
playground or athletic field. Buffer requirements are optional. A jurisdiction cannot
adopt larger buffer requirements than the requirements here in Section 3.1. A jurisdiction
should use a measuring system consistent with the rest of its ordinances, e.g. from lot
line or center point of lot.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-1,000] feet of a school.

3.2

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of a day care.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of a residential treatment facility.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis business within
[0-500] feet of an attraction within a public park that is regularly used by minors, including
a playground or athletic field.

(Optional) The (insert local here) shall prohibit the operation of a cannabis retail business
within [X] feet of another cannabis retail business.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. 462.367 subd. 14, nothing in Section 3.1 shall prohibit an active
cannabis business or a cannabis business seeking registration from continuing operation
at the same site if a (school/daycare/residential treatment facility/attraction within a
public park that is regularly used by minors) moves within the minimum buffer zone.

Zoning and Land Use

For jurisdictions with zoning, said jurisdiction can limit what zone(s) Cannabis businesses
can operate in. As with other uses in a Zoning Ordinance, a jurisdiction can also
determine if such use requires a Conditional or Interim Use permit. A jurisdiction cannot
outright prohibit a cannabis business. A jurisdiction should amend their Zoning
Ordinance and list what zone(s) Cannabis businesses are permitted in, and whether they
are permitted, conditional, or interim uses. While each locality conducts its zoning
differently, a few themes have emerged across the country. For example, cannabis
manufacturing facilities are often placed in industrial zones, while cannabis retailers are
typically found in commercial/retail zones. Cannabis retail facilities align with general
retail establishments and are prohibited from allowing consumption or use onsite and
are also required to have plans to prevent the visibility of cannabis and hemp-derived
products to individuals outside the retail location. Cannabis businesses should be zoned
under existing zoning ordinances in accordance with the license type or endorsed
activities held by the cannabis business.

3.2.1. Cultivation.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cultivation are permitted as a (type of use)
in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Manufacturer.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis manufacturer are permitted as a
(type of use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
o (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)



3.3

34

3.2.1. Hemp Manufacturer.
Businesses licensed or endorsed for low-potency hemp edible manufacturers permitted
as a (type of use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Wholesale.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for wholesale are permitted as a (type of use)
in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
o (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Retail.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for cannabis retail are permitted as a (type of
use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
o (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Transportation.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for transportation are permitted as a (type of
use) in the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

3.2.1. Cannabis Delivery.
Cannabis businesses licensed or endorsed for delivery are permitted as a (type of use) in
the following zoning districts:

e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

Hours of Operation

A jurisdiction may adopt an ordinance limiting hours of operation to the hours between
10 a.m. and 9 p.m., seven days a week. State statute prohibits the sale of cannabis
between 2 a.m. and 8 a.m., Monday through Saturday, and between 2 a.m. and 10 a.m.
on Sundays.

(Optional) Cannabis businesses are limited to retail sale of cannabis, cannabis flower,
cannabis products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived consumer products
between the hours of (insert time here) and (insert time here).

(Optional) Advertising

Cannabis businesses are permitted to erect up to two fixed signs on the exterior of the
building or property of the business, unless otherwise limited by (insert local here)’s sign
ordinances.

Section 4. Temporary Cannabis Events

Any individual or business seeking to obtain a cannabis event license must provide OCM information
about the time, location, layout, number of business participants, and hours of operation. A cannabis
event organizer must receive local approval, including obtaining any necessary permits or licenses issued
by a local unit of government before holding a cannabis event.

4.1

License or Permit Required for Temporary Cannabis Events

4.1.1 License Required.

A cannabis event organizer license entitles the license holder to organize a temporary
cannabis event lasting no more than four days. A jurisdiction should determine what type
of approval is consistent with their existing ordinances for events.

A license or permit is required to be issued and approved by (insert local here) prior to
holding a Temporary Cannabis Event.

4.1.2 Registration & Application Procedure
A registration fee, as established in (insert local here)’s fee schedule, shall be charged to
applicants for Temporary Cannabis Events.

4.1.3 Application Submittal & Review.
The (insert local here) shall require an application for Temporary Cannabis Events.

(A) An applicant for a retail registration shall fill out an application form, as provided
by the (insert local here). Said form shall include, but is not limited to:
i Full name of the property owner and applicant;
ii. Address, email address, and telephone number of the applicant;
iii.  (Insert additional standards here)
(B) The applicant shall include with the form:
i the application fee as required in (Section 4.1.2);
ii. a copy of the OCM cannabis event license application, submitted pursuant
to 342.39 subd. 2.

The application shall be submitted to the (insert local authority), or other designee for
review. If the designee determines that a submitted application is incomplete, they shall
return the application to the applicant with the notice of deficiencies.

(C) Once an application is considered complete, the designee shall inform the
applicant as such, process the application fees, and forward the application to the
(insert staff/department, or elected body that will approve or deny the request) for
approval or denial.

(D) The application fee shall be non-refundable once processed.

(E) The application for a license for a Temporary Cannabis Event shall meet the
following standards:



A jurisdiction may establish standards for Temporary cannabis events which the event
organizer must meet, including restricting or prohibiting any on-site consumption. If

there are public health, safety, or welfare concerns associated with a proposed cannabis

event, a jurisdiction would presumably be authorized to deny approval of that event.

e Insert standards here
(G) A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that meets the requirements of this
Section shall be approved.

(H) A request for a Temporary Cannabis Event that does not meet the requirements

of this Section shall be denied. The (insert city/town/county) shall notify the
applicant of the standards not met and basis for denial.

(Optional) Temporary cannabis events shall only be held at (insert local place).

(Optional) Temporary cannabis events shall only be held between the hours of (insert start

time) and (insert stop time).

Section 5. (Optional) Lower-Potency Hemp Edibles
A jurisdiction can establish different standards or requirements regarding Low-Potency Edibles. A
Jurisdiction can consider including the following section and subsections in their cannabis ordinance.

5.1 Sale of Low-Potency Hemp Edibles
The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted, subject to the conditions within this
Section.

5.2 Zoning Districts
If sales are permitted, a jurisdiction can limit what zone(s) the sales of Low-Potency
Edibles can take place in. A jurisdiction can also determine if such activity requires a
Conditional or Interim Use permit.

Low-Potency Edibles businesses are permitted as a (type of use) in the following zoning
districts:

o (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)
e (Insert zoning districts use is permitted in here)

5.3 (Optional) Additional Standards
5.3.1 Sales within Municipal Liquor Store.

A jurisdiction that already operates a Municipal Liquor Store may sell Low-Potency
Edibles within the same store.

The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted in a Municipal Liquor Store.

5.3.2 Age Requirements.

A jurisdiction is able to restrict the sale of Low-Potency Edibles to locations such as bars.

The sale of Low-Potency Edibles is permitted only in places that admit persons 21 years
of age or older.

5.3.3 Beverages.

The sale of Low-Potency Hemp Beverages is permitted in places that meet requirements
of this Section.

5.3.4 Storage of Product.
A jurisdiction is able to set requirements on storage and sales of Low-Potency Edibles.
Low-Potency Edibles shall be sold behind a counter, and stored in a locked case.

Section 6. (Optional) Local Government as a Cannabis Retailer
(insert local here) may establish, own, and operate one municipal cannabis retail business
subject to the restrictions in this chapter.

The municipal cannabis retail store shall not be included in any limitation of the number
of registered cannabis retail businesses under Section 2.6.

(insert local here) shall be subject to all same rental license requirements and procedures
applicable to all other applicants.

Section 7 Use in Public Places

No person shall use cannabis flower, cannabis products, lower-potency hemp edibles, or hemp-derived
consumer products in a public place or a place of public accommodation unless the premises is an
establishment or an event licensed to permit on-site consumption of adult-use.



	Agenda
	AI 6131 Approval of Minutes- June 11, 2024
	       ATT_6-11-24 Minutes
	AI 6132 Cannabis Ordinance 
	       ATT_Staff Memo

